
 

 1

POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING AGENDA 

February 16, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

1) Pledge of Allegiance 
2) Roll Call 
3) Announcements 
4) Approval of Minutes 

a. Commissioners regular meeting, February 8, 2016 
b. Commissioners special meeting, February 11, 2015 

5) Approval of Bills and Transfers 
a. Check Listing, dated February 16, 2016 

6) Amendments to Agenda  
7) Public Comment 

 
Comments are for any item NOT on the agenda. Comments on agenda items will be taken after each item is discussed by 
the Board of Commissioners, but before formal action is taken. (Please limit individual comments to 3 minutes to allow 
time for others wishing to speak and direct all questions and comments to the President) 

 
8) Appointment of Vacancy Board Chairman 
9) Report of the President 
10) Commissioners Comments  

a. Mr. Harold Werkheiser, Vice President 
b. Ms. Judi Coover, Commissioner 
c. Mr. Gerald Lastowski, Commissioner 

11) Appointment of Officials 
a. Township Manager 
b. Township Solicitor 
c. Township Engineer 
d. Township Treasurer 
e. Township Secretary 
f. Right to Know Officer 

12) Appointment of Committees 
a. Sewer Committee 
b. Finance Committee 

13) Reports 
a. Emergency Services (second meeting of month) 

i. Chief Werkheiser – Pocono Township Police 
ii. Chief Shay – Pocono Township Volunteer Fire Co. 

b. Administration 
i. Mr. Schuster – Township Manager 

1. Sewer Connections – Mandatory Connection Notices 
ii. Mr. Ambrose – Township Engineer 

1. Sewer Repair Project – Payment Request #2 
iii. Mr. DeVito – Solicitor 

1. Tobyhanna Sewer Agreement Amendment 
2. Authorizing the Solicitor, upon expiration of the timeframe allotted for 

the Vacancy Board to fill the vacant Commissioner seat, to petition the 
Monroe Court of Common Pleas to appoint a Commissioner. 



 

 2

iv. Ms. Zuvich – Treasurer 
14) Presentations  

a. Tom Bowditch – American Legion 
b. Ken Brown – BCRA Projects 
c. Camelback Tubing Slope Conditional Approval and Planning Module Approval 

15) Ordinances  
a. Sanofi Zoning Map Change – Referral to Planning Commission 
b. Process for review and adoption of sign, SALDO, and zoning ordinances 

16) Resolutions  
a. A resolution approving an agreement with CS-Graphx 

 
17) Public Comment  

 
Comments are for any item NOT on the agenda. Comments on agenda items will be taken after each item is discussed by 
the Board of Commissioners, but before formal action is taken. (Please limit individual comments to 3 minutes to allow 
time for others wishing to speak and direct all questions and comments to the President) 

 
18) Executive Session (If Necessary)  
19) Adjournment  

 
Next Regular meeting – March 7, 2016 (7:00 p.m.)    Next Resolution Number: 2016-11 
         Next Ordinance Number:  2016-01 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

FEBRUARY 8th, 2016 6:00 P.M. 
The reorganizational meeting of the Pocono Township Commissioners was held 
on 02/08/2016 at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA, 
and was opened by Gregg Schuster, Township Manager, at 6:00 p.m., followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
ROLL CALL: Tom Felver, present; Harold Werkheiser, present; Jerry 
Lastowski, present; and Judi Coover, present. 
 
Leo V. DeVito, Broughal & DeVito LLP, Solicitor; Tim Edinger, T&M 
Associates, Engineer; Gregg Schuster, Twp. Manager; and Pamela Finkbeiner, 
Twp. Secretary; were present. 
 
Gregg Schuster explained the Commissioners agreed to meet and to act on 
agenda items, only. The Commissioners agreed to appoint Thomas Felver as 
President and Harold Werkheiser as Vice-President.  
 
PRESIDENT:  
G. Schuster opened the floor to nominations for President.  
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to nominate Thomas 
Felver as President of the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners. G. 
Schuster requested additional nominations, hearing none he closed the 
nominations for President. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, 
yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
President T. Felver called for nomination for Vice President. 
VICE PRESIDENT:  J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to 
nominated Harold Werkheiser as Vice President of the Pocono Township 
Commissioner. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
STATEMENT OF SOLICITOR: 
Leo DeVito, Broughal & DeVito, solicitor for Pocono Township read a letter 
of resignation to the Board. He stated the current political situation has 
caused his firm to resign as solicitor to Pocono Township. Broughal & 
DeVito will continue working until a replacement firm is chosen. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to accept into record 
the minutes of the 12/21/2015 and 12/31/2015. Roll call vote: T. Felver, 
yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to approve the minutes of 
the 1/04/2016. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
J. Coover a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to approve the minutes of the 
1/07/2016. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS REORGANIZATION MEETING, 02/08/2016    PG.2 
APPROVAL OF BILLS AND TRANSFERS: 
J. Lastowski a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to ratify Bill’s list of 
01/04/2016, 1/20/2016, and 2/02/2016. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. 
Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
J. Lastowski questioned the invoice for PNC Bank debt service payment for 
the TLC property. P. Finkbeiner noted there is one payment remaining. 
J. Coover requested the contract for T&M Associates for engineering fees. 
Discussion followed on the mileage charges on the T&M invoices.  
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to approve the Bill’s list 
of 01/04/2016, 02/02/2016 and 02/08/2016, conditioned upon receipt of the 
T&M Associates proposal for payment of their invoices. Roll call vote: T. 
Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. 
Motion carried. 
 
T. Felver turned the meeting over to H. Werkheiser. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
NORTHRIDGE AT CAMELBACK ESCROW RELEASE: 
T. Edinger explained the status of the work performed. He noted a Bond 
balance of $1,139,122.62 will remain after the release of #14 & #15.  
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to approve the 
Northridge at Camelback Escrow Bond Release #14, in the amount of 
$30,362.96, as recommended by the Engineer in his letter dated 12/28/2015. 
Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and 
J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to approve the 
Northridge at Camelback Escrow Bond Release #15 in the amount of 
$69,891.56, as recommended by the Engineer in his letter dated 12/30/2015. 
Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and 
J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
G. Schuster noted Richard Almquist submitted a letter dated 02/03/2016, 
requesting the final and complete reduction of the Northridge at Camelback 
Escrow Bond in the amount of $1,239,377.14 and a second letter dated 
02/08/2016 withdrawing the request for the final reduction. Discussion 
followed. 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to deny the request of 
Richard Almquist for the release of the remaining balance of the 
Northridge at Camelback Escrow Bond. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. 
Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
R. Almquist’s letter of 02/08/2016 requested the Township allow T&M 
Associates to continue to complete the inspections and Township manager to 
issue the future Bond releases. No action taken. 
 
SR 611 SANITARY SEWER PROJECT PAYMENT REQUEST #1 – G. Schuster noted the 
payment is part of the contractual agreement for the hump repair. T. 
Edinger updated the board on the status of the project and the Benninger 
property. T&M recommended payment in their 01/19/2016 letter. Discussion 
followed. 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS’ SPECIAL MEETING, 02/08/2016        PG. 3 
SR 611 SANITARY SEWER CONT: 
 
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to approve and authorize 
the payment of Marona Construction Company’s payment request No. 1, in the 
amount of $1,147,500.00 as recommended by the Engineer in his letter dated 
01/19/2016. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
APPOINTMENT OF FIRE POLICE: 
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by H. Werkheiser, to appoint: 
Alvin Kresge Captain 
Richard Shay Lieutenant 
Patrick Kresge 
Christopher Kinsley Sr. 
Gerald Lastowski 
Steve Jacobs 
Thomas Kresge 
Christopher Kinsley Jr. 
Donald Simpson 
Peter Gallagher 
William Ward 
Robert Gupko 
Corey Sayre 
As 2016 Pocono Township Fire Police 
Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, 
abstained; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
SOLICITOR 
L. DeVito noted two ZHB hearings for short term rental properties in 
residential districts. The ZHB denied the request and the appeals were 
sent to the County courts. J. Lastowski noted if the ZHB solicitor loses 
the case at the County level the Township can only appeal if the Township 
solicitor represents the Townships at the hearings. J. Coover questioned 
the need for representation since the cases are similar to the previous 
cases. Discussion followed.  
 
Legal Representation for Short Term Rentals appeals: 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by H. Werkheiser, to authorize the 
Solicitor to represent the Township in appeals from the Zoning Hearing 
Board decisions related to short-term rentals. Roll call vote: T. Felver, 
yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, no. Motion 
carried. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
Resolution 2016-1 - Traffic Signal Rt. 611 & Rimrock Road – Jeffry 
Clapper, Public Works Director, explained application is part of the 
Rimrock Road bridge work.  
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 
2016-1 – Traffic Signal Application Rt. 611 & Rimrock Road. Roll call 
vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. 
Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS’ SPECIAL MEETING, 02/08/2016           PG. 4 
RESOLUTIONS CONT: 
 
Resolution 2016-2 – Approving 2016 Meeting dates – J. Lastowski made a 
motion, seconded by H. Werkheiser, to adopt Resolution 2016-2 – 2016 
meeting dates. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-3 – Approving Bank Signatories – J. Lastowski made a 
motion, seconded by J. Coover, to adopting Resolution 2016-3 – approving 
bank signatories. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-4 – Reappointing Planning Commission member - J. Coover 
made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to adopt Resolution 2016-4 
reappointing Ron Swink to the Pocono Township Planning Commission for a 
four (4) year term commencing on 01/01/2016 and terminating on 12/31/2019. 
Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and 
J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-5 – Reappointing Planning Commission member - J. Coover 
made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to adopt Resolution 2016-5 
reappointing Dennis Purcell to the Pocono Township Planning Commission for 
a four (4) year term commencing on 01/01/2016 and terminating on 
12/31/2019. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-6 – Reappointing Planning Commission member - J. Coover 
made a motion, seconded by  J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 2016-6 
reappointing Robert DeYoung to the Pocono Township Planning Commission for 
a four (4) year term commencing on 01/01/2016 and terminating on 
12/31/2019. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-7 – Reappointing Zoning Hearing Board member -           
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 
2016-7 reappointing Steve Chaladoff as for a three (3) year term 
commencing on 01/01/2016 and terminating on 12/31/2018. Roll call vote: T. 
Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. 
Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-8 – Reappointing alternate Zoning Hearing Board Member -        
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 
2016-8 reappointing Lew Ginsberg as alternate to the Zoning Hearing Board 
for a three (3) year term commencing on 01/01/2016 and terminating on 
12/31/2018. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2016-9 – Reappointing Civil Service Commission member -           
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to adopt Resolution 
2016-9 reappointing Rolland Cheesman to the Pocono Township Civil Service 
Commission for a six (6) year term commencing on 01/01/2016 and 
terminating on 12/31/2021. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, 
yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS’ SPECIAL MEETING, 02/08/2016          PG. 5 
RESOLUTIONS CONT: 
Resolution 2016-10 – Reappointing Recreation Committee member -           
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to adopt Resolution 
2016-10 reappointing Denise Herbert to the Pocono Township Recreation 
Committee for a five (5) year term commencing on 01/01/2016 and 
terminating on 12/31/2020. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, 
yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
VACANCY BOARD: 
Discussion followed as to the procedure and dates for the interviews. 
Board concurred to hold a special meeting for interviewing on Thursday, 
February 11th, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. and authorized the Twp. Secretary to 
advertise the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Annabella Lastowski, Twp. resident, commented on the audience’s 
conversations making it difficult to hear.  
Jennifer Wise Werkheiser, Twp. resident, suggested additional time for 
Vacancy Chair applications. 
 
ADJOURMENT INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to adjourn the meeting 
into executive session at 6:50 p.m. to discuss a litigation matter, until 
02/16/2016 at 7:00 p.m., at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, 
Tannersville, PA. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

TO INTERVIEW CANIDATES FOR VACANCY CHAIRMAN 
FEBRUARY 11th, 2016 6:00 P.M. 

The Special meeting of the Pocono Township Commissioners was held on 
02/11/2016 at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA, 
and was opened by Thomas Felver, President, at 6:00 p.m. followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ROLL CALL: Tom Felver, present; Harold Werkheiser, present; Jerry 
Lastowski, present; and Judi Coover, present. 
 
Gregg Schuster, Twp. Manager; and Pamela Finkbeiner, Twp. Secretary; were 
present. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
INTERVIEWS OF VACANCY BOARD CHAIRMAN APPLICATIONS 
The Board drew numbers for the order of questions - J. Lastowski, first; 
H. Werkheiser, second; J. Coover, third; and T. Felver, fourth. 
 
John Burns – Under 1st Class code a Vacancy Board Chairman cannot serve on 
the Civil Service Commission. John Burns was requested to resign the Civil 
Service Commission. J. Burns agreed to remain on the Civil Service 
Commission and not seek the Vacancy Board position. 
 
The remaining candidates were interview in alphabetical order, Bob 
Demarest, Bruce Kilby, Lesa Olsen, Jeremy Sawicki, and Joseph Shupp. Each 
candidate was asked similar questions by each board member.   
 
The Board ranked the candidates and the totals were confirmed by G. 
Schuster, Twp. Manager, and P. Finkbeiner, Twp. Secretary. The ranking was 
tied between Jeremy Sawicki and Joseph Shupp. 
 
The Board took a short recess at 7:25 p.m. and reconvened at 7:30 p.m. 
 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to continue the 
discussion and appointment of the Vacancy Board Chairpman at the 
08/16/2016 regular meeting and adjourn the meeting at 7:30 p.m.. Roll 
call: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and J. 
Coover, yes. Motion carried.  
 
 



Pocono Township Check Listing 

 February 16, 2016

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund

02/12/2016 54170 Best Auto Service Center Police Vehicel Repairs 1,465.76

02/12/2016 54171 BIU of PA, Inc. BIU Services 3,316.96

02/12/2016 54172 Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P. Legal - January - Planning/General 4,605.00

02/12/2016 54173 Cramer's Home Building Center Door - Park 296.59

02/12/2016 54174 Cyphers Truck Parts Markers for snow plows 88.24

02/12/2016 54175 Davidheiser's Inc. Calibrate 4 Trackers 112.00

02/12/2016 54176 E.M.Kutz, Inc. Truck #9 - Cylinder 676.00

02/12/2016 54177 Eureka Stone Quarry, Inc. Anti Skid 1,397.89

02/12/2016 54178 Finkelstein, Dory & Kong, Sandi Prior Year tax refund 95.90

02/12/2016 54179 Hanson Aggregates Pennsylvania LLC Anti Skid 2,316.17

02/12/2016 54180 Howarth, Carl Coffee supplies 86.00

02/12/2016 54181 J & B Auto Police Vehicel Repairs 1,168.87

02/12/2016 54182 Lawrence B. Fox P.C. Civil Service - legal 876.41

02/12/2016 54183 Lawson Products Public Works - Supplies 439.68

02/12/2016 54184 Macmillan Oil Co., Of Allentown Hydraulic Fluid 409.00

02/12/2016 54185 Manter, David SEO Services 87.50

02/12/2016 54186 Metropolitan Telecommunications Phones - Police 226.50

02/12/2016 54187 NAPA Auto Parts Fuel additive 13.76

02/12/2016 54188 Network Fleet GPS Service 355.40

02/12/2016 54189 Norris McLaughlin & Marcus, P.A. Legal - Audit letter 72.50

02/12/2016 54190 Otto, Carol Cleaning - Weekends 02/21/2016 & 02/28/2016 550.00

02/12/2016 54191 PA DEP Storage Tanks Registration - Facility No. 45-07653 100.00

02/12/2016 54192 PAPCO, Inc. Gasoline 1,078.21

02/12/2016 54193 PENTELEDATA Internet service 61.95

02/12/2016 54194 Pocono Record Advertising - Meetings 601.40

02/12/2016 54195 PPL Electric Utilities Rt. 611 & 12 32.96

02/12/2016 54196 RR Donnelley Traffic Citations 71.50

02/12/2016 54197 Signal Service, Inc. Signal Repair 520.00

02/12/2016 54198 Staples Advantage Office Supplies - Township 135.03

02/12/2016 54199 Staples, Chris K-9 food 46.63

02/12/2016 54200 Sundance Networks, Inc. IT Service Police/Twp 461.00

02/12/2016 54201 UNIFIRST Corporation Carpets/Uniforms 313.82

02/12/2016 54202 Wilson Products Compressed Gas Co. Supplies 6.35

02/12/2016 54203 Cash Replenishment of petty cash 166.57

02/12/2016 54204 Cardmember Services Credit card 168.44

02/12/2016 54205 Cardmember Services Credit card 640.00

TOTAL General Fund $23,059.99

Sewer Operating 

Fund

02/12/2016 1510 PPL  Electric Utilities Electric for pump stations 1,858.30

02/12/2016 1511 Want To Inc. Sewer maintenance 4,320.00

02/12/2016 1512 EEMA O&M Services Group, Inc. Valve station repairs and monthly srv chg 9,547.46

02/12/2016 1513 BROUGHAL & DEVITO, L.L.P. Legal for sewer operations 375.00

02/12/2016 1514 Pennsylvania One Call System, Inc Monthly charge 42.73

02/12/2016 1515 T & M ASSOCIATES Engineerig for sewer operations 2,487.75

02/12/2016 1516 BRODHEAD CREEK REGIONAL AUTHORITY March treatment plant charges 85,185.00

02/12/2016 1517 BLUE RIDGE COMMUNICATIONS Cable for pump stations 128.80

TOTAL Sewer Operating Fund $103,945.04

.

Sewer 

Construction 2/11/2016 152 T&M Associates Engineering for sewer construction 9,600.76

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund $9,600.76

TOTAL General Fund $23,059.99

$9,600.76

TOTAL ESSA Transfer $32,660.75

Total Sewer 

Operating Fund Wayne Bank $103,945.04 Authorized by:

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund

 Page 1 of 1



 

Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
cc:   
   
From:  Gregg Schuster, Township Manager 
 
Date:  2/12/16 
 
Re:  Township Manager Report (1/1/16 – 2/11/16) 
 
 
Personnel 

1. Two employees are currently out on workers comp. 
2. An officer was injured when he was assaulted during an arrest. He is on duty. 
3. There are two active grievances to be discussed in executive session. 

 
Meetings 

1. On 1/11/16, I attended the Civil Service Commission meeting. The commission 
discussed finalizing the proposed police department rules and the promotional 
process. 

2. On 1/12/16, I attended the Recreation Committee meeting. The committee 
discussed the Heritage Center, RecDesk, and a pending proposal from NCC. 

3. On 1/13/16, I attended a hazard mitigation plan meeting. 
4. On 1/14/16, I attended a meeting with the Control Center and Suburban 

Ambulance to discuss the transition. 
5. On 1/15/16, I met with Dee Raneri to discuss a proposal from NCC. 
6. On 1/19/16, I met with representatives from Wendy’s and T&M to discuss their 

project. 
7. On 1/21/16, I attended the Bicentennial Celebration Committee meeting. The 

Heritage Center was discussed along with other events. 
8. On 1/22/16, I met with Charlie Trapasso to support her effort in a grant 

application. 
9. On 1/28/16, Chief Werkheiser and myself met with the planning team developing 

the hazard mitigation plan. 



 

Page 2 of 4 

10. On 2/1/16, I attended the Civil Service Commission meeting. Departmental rules 
were discussed. 

11. On 2/4/16, I attended a court hearing regarding a petition that was filed. 
12. On 2/8/16, I attended a Planning Commission meeting. A Camelback project and 

another commercial project were discussed. The commission expressed that they 
would like the Board of Commissioners to move forward on the sign, SALDO, 
and zoning ordinances. They also expressed that they would like a Commissioner 
present when they meet. 

13. On 2/9/16, I attended a Recreation Committee meeting. The committee discussed 
the Heritage Center and the recreation plan. 

14. On 2/10/16, Solicitor DeVito, Zoning Officer Rick Fisher, and myself attended 
three court hearings for zoning violations. Two of the violations had been 
corrected and we settled those cases. The other case involved a property which 
had not come into compliance. The case was tried and the Township received a 
favorable judgement. 

 
Administration 

1. The Civil Service Commission continues to review the SOP manual and will 
present a recommended revision. 

2. The repair of the “hump” is proceeding. A public schedule has been posted. 
3. I continue to work with the County on the updated Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
4. I have been working with Charlie Trapasso to support a grant application for the 

Heritage Center and on the creation of a 501(c)3 
5. Two large right-to-know requests are being processed. 
6. We have informed the county that Mt. View Park will be unavailable in 2016 as a 

voting location. We offered the municipal building to them and are waiting for 
their response. 

 
Finance 

1. Work on audits has commenced. 
2. I have submitted our mill rate to the county when the timeframe to reopen the 

budget expired. 
3. We are in the process of updating bank signatures.  

 
Current Projects 
 
 

1. Filing and Workflow System 
 

A 2016 budget item is the hiring of staff to assist in the filing efforts. This will be 
on a future agenda. 
 
 

2. Codification 
 

General Code expects to deliver the final document in March. 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 

3. Road Management Plan 
 

Jeff Clapper is beginning work to detail all roads and a plan for their maintenance.  
 
 

4. Sewer Construction Contract Closeout 
 

The Leeward contract will be on an upcoming agenda for final closeout. After this 
contract is closed, only one contract remains open. 
 
 

5. Sewer System Maintenance Plan 
 

As the system stabilizes, Jeff Clapper is developing a long term plan for the 
maintenance of the collection system. 
 

6. Sewer “Hump” Repair 
 

Project is proceeding well. One payment has been authorized and another 
payment request has been received. A change order relating to additional work 
due to a water line conflict may be forthcoming. 
 

7. Sewer Connections 
 

An agenda item is authorization to resume sending mandatory connection notices 
in a staggered manner. 
 

8. Pump Replacement 
 

We have concerns that some of the pumps in our pump stations are not the 
appropriate pumps. The Board will be briefed on this at a future meeting to give 
direction. 
 

9. Alger Avenue Property 
 

Plans have been developed for the Alger Avenue property. The Board will be 
briefed at a future meeting in order to give direction. 
 

10. Police IT 
 

The police department has some unique and specific IT needs regarding their 
communications and video cameras. A plan is being developed to bring to the 
Board for comment. 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 

11. Sewer Redesign 
 

The Board will need to be briefed on the results of the project to examine certain 
pump and valve stations in order to give direction. 
 

12. Heritage Center 
 

The Bicentennial Celebration Committee is working towards the plans and 
fundraising for the Heritage Center. A 501c3 is in the process of being formed. 
 

13. Township Buildings Sewer Connection 
 

Plans have been developed to connect the Township buildings to municipal sewer. 
 

14. Municipal Facility Evaluation 
 

Quotes have been received to have a firm examine our facilities in order to 
provide input into the CIP plan to effectively plan out facility maintenance. 
 

15. Municipal Building Security 
 
Options for security at the municipal building will be investigated as time allows. 
Funding has been included in the 2016 proposed budget. 
 



1

Gregg Schuster

From: Jeffry Clapper
Sent: Friday, February 12, 2016 12:08 PM
To: Gregg Schuster
Subject: Sewer Connection Notices

Gregg‐ 
 
I request that you obtain permission from the BOC so we may begin sending out sewer connection notices. The first 
mailing was sent out in 2014 to the properties that are downstream of the “hump”.  Per your direction, I am proceeding 
working in a Northerly direction by notifying the customers in phase 2 and then phase 1, ultimately circling back and 
readdressing the non‐responsive customers in all phases. 
 
The phases are approx. as follows: 
 
Phase 1 (Northern Township Sewer Connection Limit to Great Wolf Lodge) 
Phase 2 (Great Wolf Lodge to Learn Road /RT 611) 
Phase 3 (Learn Road/RT 611 to Southern Sewer Connection Limit in Hamilton Township) 
 
This mailing will be approximately 70 connection notices which comprise the southern half of Phase 2 (Learn Rd/ RT 611 
to CVS). I am planning on mailing the notices at the beginning of March. Then, depending on the number of applications 
submitted, the remaining connection notices in Phase 2 (approx. 58) will be mailed at the beginning of May. 
 
Again, depending on how these connection notices develop into construction work, the notices for Phase 1 will follow a 
similar pattern.  
 
Thanks, 
 
Jeff 
 

Jeffry D. Clapper 
Pocono Township 
Public Works Director 
484‐553‐3336 cell 
570‐629‐1922 x 217 office 
 











 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO INTERMUNICIPAL SEWAGE COLLECTION AND 
DISPOSAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 (“Amendment No. 2 ”) dated as of January _____, 2016, 
to the Intermunicipal Sewage Collection and Disposal Services Agreement dated as of 
September 30, 2013 (the “Original Agreement”), is entered into by and between the TOWNSHIP 
OF TOBYHANNA, Monroe County, Pennsylvania, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania acting by and through its Board of Supervisors (“Tobyhanna”) 
and the TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, Monroe County, Pennsylvania, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania acting by and through its Board of Commissioners (“Pocono”).   
 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Tobyhanna and Pocono entered into the Original Agreement dated as of 
September 30, 2013; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Tobyhanna and Pocono thereafter entered into Amendment No. 1 to the 
Original Agreement dated as of May 8, 2015 (“Amendment No. 1”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Amendment No. 1 allowed the Tobyhanna Collection System to connect to 
the Pocono Collection System at MH A1-9 instead of the Original Connection Point as defined 
in Section 3.2.2 of the Original Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 1 at Section 3.2.6(b) requires Tobyhanna to cause 

Kalahari Resorts, LLC (“Kalahari”) to proceed with designing an upgrade to Pocono’s Pump 
Station No. 1 and to secure the permits and approvals necessary for the upgrade and further have 
Kalahari post the requisite financial security to secure the requisite upgrade if Tobyhanna 
permits Kalahari to proceed with the Future Phases using the connection point at MH A1-9 as 
opposed to the Original Connection Point; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is now Tobyhanna’s understanding and belief that Kalahari will proceed 

with installing the requisite sanitary sewer line to complete the connection between the 
Tobyhanna Collection System and the Pocono Collection System at the Original Connection 
Point and that no upgrade will be necessary to Pocono’s Pump Station No. 1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Original Agreement and Amendment No. 1 
in order to clarify the time period for Tobyhanna and Kalahari to proceed with the design, 
permitting, approvals, and posting of financial security for the upgrade to Pocono’s Pump Station 
No. 1, if necessary. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, do 
hereby agree as follows: 



 

 

 
1. Both Tobyhanna and Pocono hereby specifically agree that the obligation to design, 

secure permits and approvals, financially secure, and potentially proceed to bid for an 
upgrade to Pocono’s Pump Station No. 1 as described in Section 3.2.6(b) of Amendment 
No. 1 shall not be applicable and/or required until June 1, 2016 at the earliest.  In the 
event Kalahari proceeds to construct the remaining sanitary sewer line necessary to 
complete the connection of the Tobyhanna Collection System to the Pocono Collection 
System at the Original Connection Point on or before June 1, 2016, the parties hereto 
specifically agree that there shall be no obligation and/or requirement to proceed with the 
above-referenced upgrade design, permitting, approvals, security, and/or improvement to 
Pocono’s Pump Station No. 1 because said Pump Station No. 1 will no longer be used by 
the Tobyhanna Collection System once the Original Connection Point is completed and 
put in service. 

 
2. This Amendment No. 2 has been drafted on a mutual basis by the parties hereto and no 

provision shall be construed against either party on basis of drafting responsibility. 
 

3. The Original Agreement, Amendment No. 1, and this Amendment No. 2 (including the 
other writings and agreements specifically contemplated thereby or hereby and/or 
referenced therein or herein) contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto 
and supersedes any prior written or oral agreements between them respecting the subject 
matter of the same.  There are no representations, agreements, arrangements, or 
understandings, oral or written, between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter 
of the Original Agreement, Amendment No. 1, as amended/modified by this Amendment 
No. 2, which are not fully expressed therein and herein. 
 

4. Except as herein amended/modified, all provisions of the Original Agreement, as 
amended by Amendment No. 1, are hereby ratified and shall remain in full force and 
effect.   

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to the 
Intermunicipal Sewage Collection and Disposal Services Agreement to be executed by their 
respective duly authorized officers, on the dates indicated. 
 
 
ATTEST:     TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, Monroe County, 
      Pennsylvania 
 
 
By: _____________________________ By:_________________________________ 
Print Name:  Pamela Finkbeiner  Print Name: Richard Wielebinski 
Title:  Secretary    Title:      President, Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Date of Execution and Delivery: _________________________ 



 

 

 
ATTEST:     TOWNSHIP OF TOBYHANNA, Monroe County, 
      Pennsylvania 
 
 
By: _____________________________ By:_________________________________ 
Print Name:  ______________________ Print Name: __________________________ 
Title:  Secretary    Title:      Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Date of Execution and Delivery: _________________________ 
 

































 

 

TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL 
APPROVAL OF THE CAMELBACK TUBING SLOPE LODGE RECONSTRUCTION 

PLANS  
 

WHEREAS, the applicant, CB H2O L.P., submitted a plan application titled “Camelback 
Tubing Slope Lodge Reconstruction Plans” (the “Plan”). The applicant proposes to 
demolish the existing tubing slope lodge and to reconstruct a new lodge on the same site.  
The parcels are owned by EPT Ski Properties, Inc., and are known as Monroe County Tax 
ID No. 12/10/1/2, PIN No. 12636300227014, Tax ID No. 12/10/1/2-1, PIN No. 
12636300206992, Tax ID No. 12/10/1/2-4, PIN No. 12636303335160, and Tax ID No. 
12/10/1/2-6, PIN No. 12636300228392; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters 
dated September 18, 2015 and December 10, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Planning Commission recommended the conditional plan 
approval of the Plan at a meeting held on February 8, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desires to take final action on 
this Plan. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of 
Pocono Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania: 
 
That the “Camelback Tubing Slope Lodge Reconstruction Plans”, as shown on the plan 
prepared by Boucher & James, Inc., dated July 23, 2015, as revised, be hereby approved with the 
following conditions and provided the plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and 
approval of the Township Engineer and/or Township Solicitor: 
 
1. The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the 

Township Engineer’s letter dated December 10, 2015, with the following additional 
condition: 
 
a. Review of the Plan by the fire company. 

 
2. The applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the Plan, including but not limited to 

any outstanding plan account charges and all professional services fees, prior to the recording 
of the Plan. 
 

3. The applicant shall enter into a Land Development Improvements Agreement with the 
Township and provide appropriate security, if deemed necessary by the Township. 

 
4. The applicant shall enter into a Maintenance Agreement with the Township and provide 



 

 

appropriate security, if deemed necessary by the Township. 
 
5. The applicant shall enter into a Stormwater Management and Maintenance Agreement with 

the Township, if deemed necessary by the Township. 
 
6. The applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from other governmental and 

regulatory agencies prior to presenting the Plan for signatures. 
 
7. The applicant shall provide three (3) mylars for recording the plans and eight (8) sets of 

paper prints which are signed and notarized by the owner and sealed by the engineer. 

8. The applicant shall meet all conditions of the plan approval, and Plan shall be recorded 
within twelve (12) months of Conditional Plan approval, and agrees that if such conditions 
are not met, the Conditional Plan approval will be considered void. 

9. The applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the 
Board of Commissioners Resolution, otherwise the Plan is denied. 

 
RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 

Township of Pocono the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Thomas Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:    President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























































































































































TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH CS-GRAPHX 
 
WHEREAS, Pocono Township desires to enter into an agreement for support and 

maintenance of the Permit Manager system; and 
 
WHEREAS, CS-Graphx provides said services; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to execute the agreement with CS-Graphx; and   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that the agreement 

with CS-Graphx be accepted and approved. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 16th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 




	Agenda
	Minutes
	Bills List
	Township Manager Report
	Sewer Connection Notices
	Sewer Repair Payment Request #2
	Tobyhanna Sewer Agreement - Amendment 2
	December 2015 Treasurers Report
	BCRA
	Camelback
	Sanofi Zoning Change Request
	Resolution Approving an Agreement with CS-Graphx

